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RFP 13-14/17 Proposition 39 and CCC/IOU Energy Retrofit Projects 
 

 

ADDENDUM No. 1 
 

Questions by prospective bidders: 

 

 

1. The RFP is silent on how Peralta plans to implement the projects identified during the 

engineering services phase.  Is the successful awardee of this RFP precluded from 

bidding on the implementation of the work developed under this contract?  If not, 

does the district plan to put the projects identified under this contract out to bid 

separately under a future procurement?  Is there any possibility that the successful 

bidder for this engineering phase would be awarded the opportunity to implement the 

plans under this contract (under some kind of performance contract model)? 

 

Answer: The selected firm that advises the District on identifying, assessing, 

and prioritizing projects is likely to be substantially restricted, or altogether 

prevented, from bidding to implement any of the measures.  

 

Once the projects/energy-efficiency measures are selected, a separate RFP 

will be issued for implementation.  The hope is that a single firm/vendor, will 

be responsible for putting the measures in place. That vendor may subcontract 

as appropriate.  

 

2. There appear to be some errors in RFP Section III. Submission Requirements. 

Specifically, the Relevant Experience and Insurance sections refer to DSA Inspection 

services. Please clarify the required content and format for proposals.  

 

Answer: DSA inspection experience is not required for this RFP. However, 

having DSA experience could be useful for identifying projects that might 

require DSA approval, which would impact the project schedule.   

 



  

 

3 RFP Evaluation Criteria 1, Proposals and Experience, refers to a “list of key 

personnel”. Please clarify where this should be provided in the RFP format.  

 

Answer: Please include the resumes of key personnel. The resumes should 

reflect their experience with energy-efficiency measures.  

 

4 Neither the RFP Evaluation Criteria nor the Submission Requirements make mention 

of the proposer’s approach to complete the work. Will the District not evaluate our 

approach to deliver the scope of services that maximizes the return on available 

Proposition 39 grants and CCC/IOU incentives and rebates?  

 

Answer: You may succinctly explain how your approach provide greater 

benefits to the District, versus alternative approaches.  

 

5 Does the District intend to hold interviews with selected consultants? If so, when 

might these interviews be held?  

 

Answer: As of right now, the District does not intend to hold interviews. 

However, the District reserves the right to do so, at its discretion.  

 

6 By what date does the District expect to have a selected firm under contract?  

 

Answer: The District hopes to have a firm contracted by December 20, 2013.  

 

7 Has the District completed an energy use benchmarking assessment and/or 

preliminary energy audits of its campuses?  

 

Answer: Preliminary assessments have been completed. These assessments 

are very basic. So the selected vendor/firm will need to rely upon its own 

assessment. 

 

8 Please provide additional detail on the campuses and facilities (e.g. number of 

buildings, use description, area, etc.) that are to be included in the scope of the 

proposal.  

 

Answer: The District has 71 permanent structures. It also has 

portable/temporary structures, which must be considered for energy-efficiency 



  

 

measures. The buildings are generally typical of those used in education 

institutions. The buildings house classrooms, workshops, labs, offices, 

storage, etc. ** Building areas are listed in tables below.  

 

9 Please indicate if there are any specific funding/preference allocations to individual 

campuses and/facilities.   

 

Answer: No specific funding preference at this time.  

 

10 Does the District have an existing list of energy projects that should be included in 

the first round of Proposition 39 applications? If so, please provide this list.  

 

Answer: The District has assembled a list of potential project types, already 

included in the RFP. The selected firm/vendor may consider these project 

types along with their own original recommendations.  

 

11 Has the District already applied, or is the District currently in the process of applying 

for CEC Technical Assistance grants?  

 

Answer: The District has not applied for a CEC or other technical assistance 

grant. The vendor/firm must do so as part of its proposal.  

 

12 The RFP scope of work includes measurement and verification of energy savings. 

Please clarify the intent of M&V services requested under this RFP. Per the 

California Community Colleges Proposition 39 Guidelines Final Addendum (October 

2013), energy project M&V is to be provided by either utility programs (if available) 

or the Chancellor’s Office, not by the District.  

 

Answer: Measurement and verification (M&V) is a requirement for 

Proposition 39 funding. The selected firm/vendor must provide M&V 

information that will make projects eligible for Proposition 39 funding. The 

source of M&V is less material than ensuring that the District receives 

Proposition 39 funding.  

 

13 RFP Page 5, under Primary Project Evaluation and Selection Criteria, states that 

“Project must be completed by June 30, 2014.” Does this requirement apply to the 

selected consultant’s services (i.e., identifying, evaluating, and submitting 

applications for projects) or to the installation of selected energy projects? The latter 



  

 

seems unreasonable and would not allow for co-funding with some CCC/IOU 

partnership programs due to the metering duration requirements of those programs.  

 

Answer: The consultant’s services must be completed by January 15, 2014. 

Implementation of the selected projects, for the current Proposition 39 

funding cycle,  must be completed by June 30, 2014. This completion date has 

been relayed by the Proposition 39 program manager, in the California 

Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office. Therefore, among the projects that 

are identified, only those projects that can be completed by June 30, 2014, 

will be undertaken. The District expects that more projects will be identified 

than can meet the June 30, 2014 timeline. Other identified projects will be 

considered for completion in one of the four remaining, annual funding 

cycles.  

 

14 RFP Page 6 states that “The vendor/firm that helps the District to identify energy 

efficiency projects may be restricted or altogether prevented from submitting bids to 

do the projects.” Monitoring-based commissioning (MBCx) and retrocommissioning 

(RCx) projects are frequently implemented with field assistance (implementation 

work) provided by the consultant who performed the investigation. Please verify that 

the selected respondent will not be precluded from providing MBCx/RCx 

assistance/implementation services.  

 

Answer: The District is keen to ensure that all vendors/firms are given a fair 

chance to bid for business. The District also wishes to avoid the appearance 

of favoritism. Therefore, the District reserves the right to prevent the selected 

firm/vendor from competing to implement projects.  

 

15 On page 2 the RFP it states in item 2 that the selected respondent will “assess and 

recommend projects for each of the 5 annual Proposition 39 funding cycles.”  

Question – can you confirm that district will not use future funds to develop any 

projects after the first?  

 

Answer: The District wants as many project recommendations as possible in 

the first year. The District understands that it is unlikely to be able to 

implement all recommended projects in the first year of the funding cycle. 

Therefore, the District may decide to use future funds to develop new plans or 

review existing plans.   

 

16 Will the selected vendor also submit and administer applications in future years?   

 

Answer: The District would like to work with the same vendor/firm for the five 

annual funding cycles of Proposition 39. 

 



  

 

17 On page 2 the RFP it states in item 2 that the selected respondent will “assess and 

recommend projects for each of the 5 annual Proposition 39 funding cycles.”  

Question – can you confirm that district will not use future funds to develop any 

projects after the first?  

 

Asnwer: The District wants as many project recommendations as possible in 

the first year. The District understands that it is unlikely to be able to 

implement all recommended projects in the first year of the funding cycle. 

Therefore, the District may decide to use future funds to develop new plans or 

review existing plans.   

 

18 Will the selected vendor also submit and administer applications in future years?   

 

Answer: The District would like to work with the same vendor/firm for the five 

annual funding cycles of Proposition 39. 

 

 
19  Section II, Item 2 states that the district needs to identify projects that can be completed by 

June 30
th
, 2014. This is a fairly quick turn-around time.  

1. Does the district have an HVAC controls maintenance contract that they could 

leverage to quickly implement simple control upgrades (control code changes) or 

would all control projects have to be put out to bid?  

Answer: The District currently uses American Air Conditioning.  

2. Does the district have a preferred lighting controls contractor?  

Answer: Our lighting control systems is currently done by Emcor.  

 
20 Section II, Item 2 states that “Additional projects must be identified and prioritized for the 

remaining four year of the 5-year funding period”. Is there a due date for this list of projects?   

Answer: Yes, all information is to be acquired under the terms of this RFP. The 

District wants this information to aid planning for the remaining four, 1-year funding 

cycles. A number of projects that is sufficient to exhaust Proposition 39 funding for 

the current cycle, Year 1, must be identified and completed by June 30, 2014. 

Remaining projects that would be completed during Proposition 39 funding cycles 

for years 2-5, must also be identified. Here, the District, at its sole discretion, may 

consider slightly extending the deadline for in-depth analysis of these potential 

projects. An extension, if granted, may not adversely impact application or project 

completion schedule requirements. The required outcome is to apply for project 

funding and complete projects in a manner that yields the maximum funding from 

each of the five Proposition 39 funding cycles.   



  

 

21  Section II, Item 7 states “By January 15
th
, 2014, submit and administer all applications and 

required paperwork for Proposition 39 funds and CCC/IOU funds.” Does the district have a 

list of projects with estimated project cost, energy savings, and completion date ready to be 

reviewed and submitted by the selected vendor or is the selected vendor tasked with creating 

this list of projects from scratch?  

Answer: The District has a list of potential project types, which will be given to the 

selected vendor/firm. The District expects that the selected vendor/firm will use their 

expertise to analyze these potential projects and also to generate additional projects.  

22  Under Section III. Submission Requirements, Item 3. Relevant Experience, what is 

the definition of “Inspection Services”? Do you mean audits, feasibility studies? 

Other?  

 

Answer: Please list the types of experience that you think will contribute to 

successful completion of this work. Experience with inspection services might 

be useful knowledge to estimate completion time for some projects. 

 

23 Section IV. Eval Criteria, A. Item 3. Price Proposal. The instructions state “Submit 

itemized and total cost estimate and personnel fee schedule.” Due to the general 

description of services in II. Scope of Services, just a fee schedule would be the 

appropriate proposal submittal. It would be difficult to develop an itemized and total 

cost estimate without more information on quantity and types of Peralta Community 

College District facilities. Please clarify what will be expected/evaluated under Price 

Proposal section of proposal.  

 

Answer: The District would like to see how the selected vendor/firm arrived at 

the fees that they intend to charge the District. Please provide this information 

to the best of your ability. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

** Below are pages listing the buildings on the four campuses and the District Office. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

College of Alameda 
Bldg 
No. 

Bldg Name Outside Sq. Ft. Year Built Last Addition Status 

1 ADMIN-MED-DENTAL - A 34084 1970 
 

A 

2 AUTO SHOP - B 30176 1970 1989 A 

3 LIFE SCIENCE BOILER - C 20991 1970 
 

A 

4 CLASS ROOM - D 50888 1970 1980 A 

5 STUDENT UNION - F 22762 1970 1998 A 

11 AERO TECH BLDG A 10908 1969 1971 A 

16 GYM - G 40088 1975 
 

A 

17 LEARNING RES CTR - L 41536 1977 
 

A 

18 CHILDRENS CENTER 10192 1976 
 

A 

20 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 1440 1976 
 

A 

21 PHYS ED STORAGE 1491 1976 
 

A 

24 TENNIS SUPPLY B 77 1976 
 

A 

25 AERO TECH BLDG B 17130 1979 
 

A 

26 DIESEL MECHANICS - E 11850 1989 
 

A 

27 PRESSBOX 192 2004 
 

A 

28 BB CONCESSIONS/RR 1228 2000 
 

A 

29 BB DUGOUT 1 440 2000 
 

A 

30 BB DUGOUT 2 440 2000 
 

A 

31 SOCCER FIELD RESTROOMS 820 1994 
 

A 

32 AEROTECH SHED C 400 1969 
 

A 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Berkeley City College 
Bldg 
No. 

Bldg Name Outside Sq. Ft. Year Built Last Addition Status 

1 BERKELEY CITY COLLEGE 165690 2006 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

Laney College 

Bldg 
No. 

Bldg Name Outside Sq. Ft. Year Built Last Addition Status 

1 ADMINISTRATION TOWER 53988 1971 
 

A 

2 BUILDING A 66980 1971 1979 A 

3 BUILDING B 43002 1971 
 

A 

4 BUILDING C 7491 1971 
 

A 

5 BUILDING D 9592 1971 
 

A 

6 BUILDING E 38856 1971 
 

A 

7 BUILDING F 38090 1971 1979 A 

8 BUILDING G 60754 1971 
 

A 

9 FORUM 6466 1971 
 

A 

10 GYMNASIUM 16570 1971 
 

A 

11 LIBRARY 46749 1971 
 

A 

12 STUDENT CENTER 49935 1971 
 

A 

13 LOCKER 18100 1971 
 

A 

15 THEATER 36134 1975 
 

A 

16 CHILDRENS CENTER 8569 1976 
 

A 

17 ART BUILDING 21561 2006 
 

A 

18 CONCESSION STAND 356 1971 2004 A 

20 FOOTBALL PRESS BOX 2750 1971 2004 A 

21 ATHLETIC FIELD HOUSE 17623 2011 
 

A 

22 ATHLETIC FIELD RESTROOMS 800 2004 
 

A 

Merritt College 
Bldg 
No. 

Bldg Name Outside Sq. Ft. Year Built Last Addition Status 

1 TRADE TECHNOLOGY - A 46201 1971 
 

A 

2 SCIENCE - D 75493 1971 
 

A 

3 GYMNASIUM - E 24617 1971 
 

A 

4 LOCKER - F 29585 1971 
 

A 

5 BUSINESS - P 44537 1971 2007 A 

6 CAMPUS CENTER Q 14326 1971 1995 A 

7 CAMPUS CENTER R 53889 1971 2007 A 

15 LANDSCAPE HORT - H 18562 1979 
 

A 

17 LIBRARY - L 35399 1975 
 

A 

20 MAINTENANCE 1422 1976 
 

A 

22 CHILDRENS CENTER 8569 1976 
 

A 

23 ATHLETIC STORAGE 1 1025 1974 
 

A 

24 ATHLETIC STORAGE 1425 1976 
 

A 

25 ATHLETIC STORAGE 3 484 1976 
 

A 

27 FRUITVALE UNIT 3045 1976 
 

A 

28 CONCESSION STAND 352 2004 
 

A 

29 PRESSBOX 192 2004 
 

A 

30 TRACK FIELD RESTROOMS 860 2008 
 

A 

31 HORTICULTURE TRAILER 180 1994 
 

A 

32 HORT. TRACTOR SHED 190 1977 
 

A 

33 HORT REFRIGERATION UNIT 100 1990 
 

A 



  

 

 

 

District Office 
Bldg 
No. 

Bldg Name Outside Sq. Ft. Year Built Last Addition Status 

1 ADMINISTRATIVE CTR 26300 1981 
 

A 

2 WAREHOUSE DP 41500 1930 1998 A 

4 GROUNDS BUTLER BLDG 10067 1950 1981 A 

5 GROUNDS SHED 3060 1930 
 

A 

7 CONROY BLDG DG 7736 1950 1995 A 

8 INT ED 1 1536 1991 
 

A 

9 INT ED 2 1536 1999 
 

A 

10 PCTV 1 1440 2012 
 

A 

11 PCTV2 1440 2012 
 

A 

101 860 ATLANTIC 26050 1989 2011 A 

 

  

 

 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 


